69<sup>th</sup>

# Convocation of Distinguished Fellows

## **2025** Annual Meeting

Lifestyle for Positive Mental and Physical Health

May 19, 2025



# 69<sup>th</sup>

# Convocation of Distinguished Fellows

Monday, May 19, 2025 5:30 p.m. - 6:30 p.m. PST

### Contents

Honorees	4-20
50-Year Distinguished Life Fellows, Life Fellows and	
Life Members 1975-2025	4-8
2025 Distinguished Life Fellows	9-10
2025 Life Fellows	11-13
2025 Distinguished Fellows	14-15
2025 Fellows	16-18
2025 International Distinguished Fellows	19
2025 International Fellows	20
The Program	21-23
Induction of Distinguished Fellows	21
The Pledge of Distinguished Fellowship	21-22
Introduction of Distinguished Life Fellows	22
Introduction of Fellows and Life Fellows	22
Introduction of International Fellows and	
Distinguished Fellows	22
Introduction 50-Year Members	22
Introduction of Membership Committee and	
Its Chairperson	22
Award Presentations	22-23
William C. Menninger Memorial Convocation Lecture	23
Awards Presented at the Convocation	24-30
Special Presidential Commendation	24-28
Distinguished Service Award	29-30
Organizational Distinguished Service Award	30
Award Lectures	31-47
Administrative Psychiatry Award	31
Adolf Meyer Award	31
Alexandra Symonds Award	32
Chester M. Pierce Human Rights Award	33
David A. Mrazek, M.D., Memorial Award	34
Frank J. Menolascino Award	35
George Tarjan Award	36
John Fryer Award	36

Kun-Po Soo Award	37
Manfred S. Guttmacher Award	38
Nasrallah Family Award for Advances in	
Psychiatric Neuroscience	39
Oskar Pfister Award	40
Patient Advocacy Award	40
Psychiatric Services Achievement Awards	41-43
Gold Award	41
Silver Award	42
Bronze Award	43
Award for Research in Psychiatry	44
Simon Bolivar Award	45
Solomon Carter Fuller Award	45
Vestermark Psychiatry Educator Award	46
Viswanathan Family Lifestyle Medicine and	
Psychiatry Award	47
Other Awards	48-59
Agnes Purcell McGavin Award for Distinguished Career	
Achievement in Child and Adolescent Psychiatry	48
Agnes Purcell McGavin Award for Prevention	49
Alexander Gralnick, M.D. Award for Research	
in Schizophrenia	50
Bruno Lima Award	51-52
Hartford-Jeste Award for Future Leaders in	
Geriatric Psychiatry	52
Health Services Research Award - Senior Scholar	53
Isaac Ray Award	54
Jack Weinberg Memorial Award for Geriatric Psychiatry	55
Jeanne Spurlock, M.D. Minority Fellowship	
Achievement Award	56
Kempf Fund Award for Research Development in	
Psychobiological Psychiatry	57
O'Leary Award for Innovation in Psychiatry	58
Research Mentorship Award	59
APA Membership Committee	60

## 50-Year Distinguished Life Fellows, Life Fellows and Life Members 1975-2025

Members who have demonstrated exceptional loyalty to the association: 50 years of membership as of January 1, 2025.

John Abess, M.D., LFAPA Ramesh Agarwal, M.D. Salman Akhtar, M.D., DLFAPA Syed Ali, M.D., DLFAPA Gildegardo Alidon, M.D., DLFAPA David Altman, M.D., LFAPA Daniel Anzia, M.D., DLFAPA Susanne Appel, M.D. Iris Ascher, M.D. Anthony Atwell, M.D., DLFAPA Ravi Baliga, M.D., LFAPA Rebecca Barchas, M.D., DLFAPA J Barnes, M.D., DLFAPA Ralph Barr, M.D. Alan Barry, M.D. James Bayliss, M.D. Stephen Beck, M.D. Alan Beeber, M.D., DLFAPA Gregory Belenky, M.D., DLFAPA Michael Bennett, M.D., DLFAPA Arlene Bennett, M.D. Fred Berger, M.D., DLFAPA Richard Berkson, M.D., DLFAPA Barry Berman, M.D. Richard Bernstein, M.D., DLFAPA Chand Bhan, M.D. Michael Bick, M.D., DLFAPA Charles Blackinton, M.D., DLFAPA Jack Blaine, M.D. Ellen Blumenthal, M.D. Jonathan Book, M.D., DLFAPA Frank Boruch, M.D., LFAPA Lawrence Brain, M.D., LFAPA Neil Brast, M.D., LFAPA Judith Braun, M.D. Michael Brennagh, M.D. Beth Ann Brooks, M.D., DLFAPA Norman Broudy, M.D. Kenton Brown, M.D.

Judith Bukberg, M.D., LFAPA Robert Burnstein, M.D. Eugene Cacciola, M.D. Robert Campion, M.D. Stephen Cann, M.D. Charles Carl. M.D. Sam Castro, M.D., DLFAPA Philip Cenac, M.D., LFAPA Ranjit Chacko, M.D., DLFAPA Douglas Chavis, M.D., LFAPA Brian Christenson, M.D., LFAPA Lawrence Clinton, M.D., DLFAPA Bun Co. M.D., LFAPA Kenneth Cohen, M.D., LFAPA Phillip Cohen, M.D., LFAPA Karyl Cole, M.D., DLFAPA David Coons, M.D., DLFAPA Francine Cournos, M.D., DLFAPA Carl Crew. M.D. Homai Cupala, M.D., LFAPA Richard Dalton, M.D., DLFAPA Anasseril Daniel, M.D., DLFAPA Surinder Dargan, M.D., LFAPA Kenneth Davis, M.D. Robert Davis, M.D., LFAPA Jeffrey Dekret, M.D., LFAPA Manikant Desai, M.D. Joel Dimsdale, M.D., DLFAPA Franklin Dines, M.D. M Dobvns. M.D., DLFAPA Christopher Doran, M.D., DLFAPA George Dougherty, M.D. Mina Dulcan, M.D., DLFAPA Suzanne Dundon, M.D., DLFAPA Stephen Dunlop, M.D., DLFAPA John Dunne, M.D., DLFAPA Signe Dysken, M.D., DLFAPA Ronald Early, M.D. Lida Edmundson, M.D., DLFAPA

Marjorie Eler, M.D. Frederick Engstrom, M.D., DLFAPA Azariah Eshkenazi, M.D., LFAPA Irl Extein. M.D. William Falk, M.D., DLFAPA Ronald Feigin, M.D., DLFAPA Alan Felthous, M.D., DLFAPA Peter Fink, M.D., LFAPA Gregory Firman, M.D., DLFAPA Ellen Fischbein, M.D., DLFAPA Andrew Fisher, M.D. James Flax, M.D., DLFAPA John Fleming, M.D., DLFAPA Steven Frankel, M.D., DLFAPA Robert Freedman, M.D., DLFAPA Cherryl Friedman, M.D. Eugene Friedrich, M.D. Susan Fukushima, M.D., LFAPA Glen Gabbard, M.D., DLFAPA Theodore Gaensbauer, M.D., DLFAPA Michael Garrett, M.D. Jeffrey Geller, M.D., DLFAPA Ralph Gemelli, M.D. Bernard Gerber, M.D., DLFAPA Charles Giannasio, M.D., DLFAPA Donald Gill, M.D., DLFAPA Michael Giuliano, M.D. Gary Glass, M.D., DLFAPA Hector Goa, M.D. Mark Gold, M.D., DLFAPA Richard Goldberg, M.D., DLFAPA Nikolas Golosow, M.D. Gordon Gondos, M.D., LFAPA Philip Greco, M.D., LFAPA Ronald Green, M.D., DLFAPA Joseph Greene, M.D., DLFAPA Kenneth Gruenberg, M.D., DLFAPA Bala Gulasekaram, M.D., LFAPA Philip Halapin, M.D. Angelos Halaris, M.D., DLFAPA James Halikas, M.D., DLFAPA

John Hamm, M.D., LFAPA

Dennett Hanssmann, M.D., DLFAPA Norman Hartstein, M.D., LFAPA Jesse Hellman, M.D., DLFAPA Lawrence Henderson, M.D. Dolores Hernandez, M.D. Gordon Hodas, M.D., DLFAPA William Hogan, M.D., DLFAPA Bruce Holstein, M.D. Ock Hong, M.D., LFAPA Michael Hughes, M.D., DLFAPA Gordon Ifill, M.D., LFAPA Luis Ignacio, M.D., LFAPA Charles Ihlenfeld, M.D., LFAPA Luis Iturrino, M.D. Anthony Jackson, M.D., DLFAPA Kenneth Jaffe, M.D., DLFAPA Charles Jaffe, M.D., DLFAPA Philip Janicak, M.D., DLFAPA Eileen Jennings, M.D. Dilip Jeste, M.D., DLFAPA Marvin Jin, M.D., LFAPA Robert Johnston, M.D., DLFAPA Norma Josef, M.D., DLFAPA Martin Kafka, M.D., DLFAPA Ikar Kalogjera, M.D., DLFAPA John Kane, M.D. Harriet Kaplan, M.D., DLFAPA David Kassoff, M.D. Jerome Kaufman, M.D., LFAPA Martin Keller, M.D., DLFAPA Jonathan Kelly, M.D. Gary Kennedy, M.D., LFAPA Joseph Keyser, M.D., LFAPA Yoon Kim. M.D. Ralph Klein, M.D. Harold Koenigsberg, M.D., DLFAPA Saida Koita, M.D., DLFAPA Robert Kolodner, M.D., LFAPA Eugene Kostiuk, M.D. Robert Krell, M.D., DLFAPA Marvin Kremberg, M.D., LFAPA

50-Year Members continued

R Krishna, M.D., DLFAPA William Kuentzel, M.D., LFAPA Santha Kurien, M.D., LFAPA Pavlos Kymissis, M.D., DLFAPA Don La Grone, M.D. Norman Ladov, M.D., DLFAPA Nataraian Laks. M.D. Richard Land, D.O., DLFAPA Joan Lang, M.D., DLFAPA Michael Lapidus, M.D., DLFAPA Gunnbjorg Lavoll, M.D., DLFAPA Robert Lawton, M.D. Kok Lee. M.D. Michael Leopold, M.D., LFAPA Ira Lesser, M.D., DLFAPA Bennett Leventhal, M.D., DLFAPA Ronald Levin, M.D. Henry Levine, M.D., DLFAPA David Levine, M.D. Andrew Levitas, M.D., LFAPA Lorenzo Lewis, M.D. Jacqueline Lichtenstein, M.D., Jeffrey Lieberman, M.D., DLFAPA Jonathan Lieff, M.D., DLFAPA David Lifschutz, M.D., LFAPA Colleen Livingston, M.D., DLFAPA Steven Locke, M.D., DLFAPA Guv Lord, M.D. Philip Luloff, M.D., LFAPA Thakshaka Madamala, M.D., LFAPA Hassan Mahfoozi, M.D., LFAPA Bahman Malekpour, M.D., LFAPA H Martin, M.D., DLFAPA Lawrence Martin, M.D., LFAPA Lawrence Martin, M.D., DLFAPA Jamshid Marvasti, M.D. Mary Massie, M.D., DLFAPA Charles McDermott, M.D. David Mee-Lee, M.D. Harshad Mehta, M.D. Paul Menitoff, M.D. Richard Meyer, M.D.

Ambrose Mgbako, M.D. Ronald Milestone, M.D., LFAPA Alexander Miller, M.D., DLFAPA Leslie Moldauer, M.D., DLFAPA Teresa Moran, M.D. Stephen Mueller, M.D. William Munvon, M.D. John Nadas, M.D. Morteza Nadiafi. M.D., LFAPA Charles Nevels, M.D. Ada Nicolescu, M.D. James Nininger, M.D., DLFAPA Matthew Nio, M.D., DLFAPA Mahmoud Okasha, M.D., DLFAPA Samuel Okpaku, M.D., DLFAPA John O'Neal, M.D., DLFAPA Gerald Osborn, M.D., DLFAPA David Osser, M.D., DLFAPA Katharyn Ouzts, M.D., DLFAPA Oscar Pakier, M.D., LFAPA Ramon Parrilla, M.D., DLFAPA Suresh Patel, M.D., DLFAPA Nancy Pecen, M.D., LFAPA Oscar Perez, M.D., DLFAPA Stephen Peterson, M.D., LFAPA James Petit. M.D. Leonora Petty, M.D., LFAPA Jay Phillips, M.D., DLFAPA David Pickar, M.D., DLFAPA Harold Pincus, M.D., DLFAPA Song Piyaka, M.D., DLFAPA Trevor Price, M.D., DLFAPA Nicholas Putnam, M.D., DLFAPA Kathleen Quinn, M.D. Ronald Rabin, M.D., DLFAPA Kamal Raisani, M.D., LFAPA Luis Ramirez, M.D., LFAPA Ronald Rawitt, M.D., LFAPA Nukala Reddy, M.D., LFAPA Bruce Regan, M.D., DLFAPA Richard Renka, M.D., DLFAPA Charles Reynolds, M.D., DLFAPA

Anthony Rich, M.D., DLFAPA Elliott Richelson, M.D., DLFAPA Corey Rigberg, M.D. Enio Rigolin, M.D., DLFAPA David Ritvo. M.D. Robert Robinson, M.D., DLFAPA Joseph Rochford, M.D. Robert Rohs, M.D. Leonard Rosen, M.D., DLFAPA Floyd Rosen, M.D., DLFAPA Jerrold Rosenbaum, M.D., DLFAPA Lyle Rosnick, M.D. Jeffrey Ross, M.D. L Russakoff, M.D., DLFAPA Allen Sandler, M.D., LFAPA Brij Saran, M.D. Neal Satten, M.D. Charles Schaffer, M.D., DLFAPA Robert Schnackenberg, M.D., DLFAPA Cecilia Schocket, M.D., DLFAPA Carol Schreiner, M.D. Irwin Schussler, D.O., LFAPA James Scully, M.D., DLFAPA Thomas Segall, M.D. Michael Serby, M.D., DLFAPA Williard Shanken, M.D., DLFAPA Carol Sheaffer, M.D. Gerald Shiener, M.D., DLFAPA Yong Shin, M.D. Alan Sholomskas, M.D., DLFAPA Ibis Sigas, M.D., LFAPA Michael Silverglat, M.D., LFAPA Kuldip Singh, M.D., LFAPA Michael Slome, M.D. Bruce Snider, M.D. Misook Soh. M.D. Paul Soloff, M.D. Alan Sooho, M.D., LFAPA Marilyn Sosna, M.D., DLFAPA Stuart Sotsky, M.D., DLFAPA Jeffrey Speller, M.D.

David Sperling, M.D. Michael Spodak, M.D., DLFAPA Stephen Starr, M.D. Jay Stearns, M.D. Elliott Stein, M.D., DLFAPA Thomas Stewart, M.D., DLFAPA Jonathan Stewart, M.D., Joseph Strayhorn, M.D., LFAPA Michael Sumner, M.D. Davis Suskind, M.D. Kenneth Talan, M.D., DLFAPA Khalil Tanas, M.D., DLFAPA Gregory Teas, M.D., DLFAPA James Thompson, M.D., DLFAPA J Thomson, M.D. Jerome Tilles, M.D., DLFAPA Moshe Torem, M.D., DLFAPA Getulio Tovar, M.D. Timothy Ts'O, M.D., LFAPA Yogendra Upadhyay, M.D., DLFAPA S Vasudevan, M.D., LFAPA Michael Vergare, M.D., DLFAPA Robert Vigdor, M.D. Elliot Wagenheim, M.D. Ernest Wagner, M.D. B. Walsh. M.D., DLFAPA Ronald Warnell, M.D., DLFAPA Stanley Watson, M.D. Lyndon Waugh, M.D., LFAPA Richard Weiner, M.D., DLFAPA M Weinstein, M.D. Jay Weisberg, M.D., DLFAPA Richard Weiss, M.D., LFAPA Roger Weiss, M.D., LFAPA Gary Weissberg, M.D. Martha Welch, M.D., DLFAPA Kenneth Wells, M.D., LFAPA Henry White, M.D. William Wimmer, M.D., DLFAPA Robert Withrow, M.D., DLFAPA Alan Wofsey, M.D.

50-Year Members continued

William Wood, M.D., DLFAPA Antonio Wood, M.D., Tai Yoo, M.D., DLFAPA Young Yoon, M.D. Joseph Youngerman, M.D. Abdallah Zamaria, M.D.
Jacquelyn Zavodnick, M.D.
Heywood Zeidman, M.D., DLFAPA
Michael Zornitzer, M.D., DLFAPA
David Zwerdling, M.D., DLFAPA

### 2025 Distinguished Life Fellows

Distinguished Life Fellows are Distinguished Fellows who have achieved Life Status, an honor bestowed on members who, through years of active membership, have demonstrated outstanding loyalty to the association.

Evaristo Akerele, M.D., DLFAPA\* Gustavo Alva, M.D., DLFAPA\* Jeffrey Alvaro, M.D., DLFAPA John Andrus, M.D., DLFAPA Samina Aziz, M.D., DLFAPA Bhagwan Bahroo, M.D., DLFAPA Theodora Balis, M.D., DLFAPA\* Laurie Ballew, D.O., DLFAPA\* Andrea Bates, M.D., DLFAPA Michael Bengtson, M.D., DLFAPA Jeffrey Bennett, M.D., DLFAPA Bernard Bierman, M.D., DLFAPA\* John Bostwick, M.D., DLFAPA Mark Broadhead, M.D., DLFAPA Michael Burke, M.D., DLFAPA Vivian Campbell, M.D., DLFAPA Padraic Carr, M.D., DLFAPA Michael Champion, M.D., DLFAPA Sanjay Chandragiri, M.D., DLFAPA Jacquelyn Chang, M.D., DLFAPA Jeffrey Chao, M.D., DLFAPA Josepha Cheong, M.D., DLFAPA Kathleen Clegg, M.D., DLFAPA Marc Colon, M.D., DLFAPA Marilyn Conlon, M.D., DLFAPA Todd Cox, M.D., DLFAPA\* Steven Cuffe, M.D., DLFAPA Sallie DeGolia, M.D., DLFAPA\* Trent Desselle, M.D., DLFAPA Lesley Dickson, M.D., DLFAPA Jennifer Downey, M.D., DLFAPA Manal Durgin, M.D., DLFAPA\* Cynthia Epperson, M.D., DLFAPA Lawrence Farago, M.D., DLFAPA Kayla Fisher, M.D., J.D., DLFAPA\* Oliver Freudenreich, M.D., DLFAPA

Devang Gandhi, M.D., DLFAPA\* Toby Goldsmith, M.D., DLFAPA Angelique Goodhue, M.D., DLFAPA Laurie Gordon, M.D., DLFAPA\* William Haning, M.D., DLFAPA\* Nancy Harpold-Silas, D.O., DLFAPA Gregory Harris, M.D., DLFAPA\* Jonathan Henry, M.D., DLFAPA\* Kenneth Herrmann, M.D., DLFAPA Joel Idowu, M.D., DLFAPA\* Israt Jahan, M.D., DLFAPA Thulasiram Janardhanan, M.D., **DLFAPA** Charles Jin, M.D., DLFAPA\* Steven Kanfer, M.D., DLFAPA\* Edward Kantor, M.D., DLFAPA\* Craig Katz, M.D., DLFAPA\* Harish Kavirajan, M.D., DLFAPA\* Scott Klenzak, M.D., DLFAPA\* Mark Komrad, M.D., DLFAPA\* Chad Koyanagi, M.D., DLFAPA\* F Kozel, M.D., DLFAPA\* Camille LaCroix, M.D., DLFAPA W. LaFrance, M.D., M.P.H, DLFAPA Stephanie Le Melle, M.D., DLFAPA Petros Levounis, M.A., M.D., DLFAPA Eric Lewkowiez, M.D., DLFAPA Sheila Loboprabhu, M.D., DLFAPA\* Stephen Lund, M.D., DLFAPA John Luo, M.D., DLFAPA\* Philip Malinas, M.D., DLFAPA Octavio Martinez, M.D., M.B.A., M.P.H, DLFAPA Alan Marx, M.D., DLFAPA Andrew McLean, M.D., M.P.H, DLFAPA

Distinguished Life Fellows continued

Philip Merideth, M.D., DLFAPA David Mintz, M.D., DLFAPA\* David Mischoulon, M.D., DLFAPA\* Michael Morejon, M.D., DLFAPA\* Kerim Munir, M.D., DLFAPA David Nathan, M.D., DLFAPA Alan Newman, M.D., DLFAPA Thuy-Huynh Nguyen, M.D., DLFAPA Philip Pan. M.D., DLFAPA Joseph Penn, M.D., DLFAPA Narsimha Pinninti. M.D., DLFAPA Barbara Ponieman, M.D., DLFAPA Joshua Pretsky, M.D., DLFAPA Charles Price, M.D., DLFAPA\* M. Hanif Ramay, M.D., DLFAPA\* Mrudula Rao, M.D., DLFAPA\* Devna Rastogi, M.D., DLFAPA John Ratey, M.D., DLFAPA Valerie Relacion, M.D., DLFAPA\* Mary Roberts, M.D., DLFAPA\* John Santopietro, M.D., DLFAPA Jeanette Scheid, M.D., Ph.D., DLFAPA\* Conrado Sevilla, M.D., DLFAPA\* Asim Shah, M.D., DLFAPA\*

Edward Simmer, M.D., DLFAPA\* Maninder Singh, M.D., DLFAPA\* Brian Smith, M.D., DLFAPA Wei-Yi Song, M.D., DLFAPA\* Bruce Spring, M.D., DLFAPA\* Wayland Stephens, M.D., DLFAPA\* Bruce Sutor, M.D., DLFAPA\* Marilou Tablang-Jimenez, M.D., DLFAPA Ayame Takahashi, M.D., DLFAPA Usha Tandon, M.D., DLFAPA\* Khushro Unwalla, M.D., DLFAPA Kristin Van Zant, M.D., DLFAPA Sanjay Vaswani, M.D., DLFAPA Jose Ventura, M.D., DLFAPA Kathy Vincent, M.D., DLFAPA\* Bhupinder Waraich, M.D., DLFAPA\* Steven Weinstein, M.D., DLFAPA Jill Williams, M.D., DLFAPA Nancy Williams, M.D., DLFAPA\* Kenneth Wilson, M.D., DLFAPA\* Kevin Winders. M.D., DLFAPA\* Theresa Yuschok, M.D., DLFAPA

<sup>\*</sup> Distinguished Life Fellows who were inadvertently omitted from the 2024 program. This year, we are proud to honor them alongside our 2025 honorees.

### 2025 Life Fellows

Life Fellows are Fellows who have achieved Life Status, an honor bestowed on members who, through years of active membership, have demonstrated outstanding loyalty to the association.

Nicole Absar, M.D., LFAPA Mohammad Abu-Salha, M.D., LFAPA\* Marilena Adames-Jennings, M.D., I FAPA Joseph Afonso, M.D., LFAPA\* Mercedes Agudo, M.D., LFAPA Kishwar Ali, M.D., LFAPA\* Sved Ali. M.D., LFAPA\* Kirk Anderson, M.D., LFAPA\* Augusto Angulo, M.D., LFAPA Ricardo Arango, M.D., LFAPA\* Pradeep Arora, M.D., LFAPA Mohammad Ashfaq, M.D., LFAPA\* Philip Baese, M.D., LFAPA Charles Barton, M.D., LFAPA Marcelo Batkis, M.D., LFAPA David Bellian, M.D., LFAPA Kirk Bellis, D.O., LFAPA Peter Betz. M.D., LFAPA\* Shree Bhaskar, M.D., LFAPA Mariorie Blieka, M.D., LFAPA Jerald Block, M.D., LFAPA Paul Bodea-Barothi, M.D., LFAPA Lisa Borg, M.D., LFAPA Phillip Bowman, M.D., M.P.H., LFAPA\* William Bragdon, M.D., LFAPA Robert Bright, M.D., LFAPA\* Peter Brodrick, M.D., LFAPA Andrew Brown, M.D., LFAPA Gregory Bunt, M.D., LFAPA John Burruss, M.D., LFAPA\* Juan Bustillo. M.D., LFAPA Stewart Callis, M.D., LFAPA M Catolico, M.D., LFAPA Theresa Cerulli, M.D., LFAPA\* Kelly Chura-Singh, M.D., M.B.A., LFAPA\*

Camellia Clark, M.D., LFAPA\* Jerry Co, M.D., LFAPA Tracy Cogbill, M.D., LFAPA\* Lillian Colon, M.D., LFAPA Colleen Connor, M.D., LFAPA\* Jeffrey Corbin, M.D., M.P.H., LFAPA Philip Creps, D.O., LFAPA\* Joseph D'Costa, M.D., LFAPA\* Michael Dawes, M.D., LFAPA Michael De La Hunt, M.D., LFAPA Karnail Dhillon, M.D., LFAPA\* Anne Dietrich, M.D., LFAPA Lou Eads. M.D., LFAPA Jeffrey Feola, M.D., LFAPA\* Thomas Fitzgerald, M.D., LFAPA\* Don Fowls, M.D., LFAPA William Fox. M.D., LFAPA Carol Freas, M.D., LFAPA\* Lvnne Gabv. M.D., LFAPA Laura Gaffney, M.D., LFAPA Cathryn Galanter, M.D., LFAPA Angel Garrido, M.D., LFAPA Olumuyiwa Gay, M.D., LFAPA Peter Geier, M.D., LFAPA Jerry Gelbart, M.D., LFAPA Sukhmani Gill, M.D., LFAPA\* Franchot Givens, M.D., LFAPA\* Ondria Gleason, M.D., LFAPA Michael Goldstein, M.D., LFAPA Marianne Goodman, M.D., LFAPA Deepa Gopalakrishnan, M.D., LFAPA Srisai Gowda, M.D., LFAPA Sharette Gray, M.D., LFAPA Karen Greenberg, M.D., LFAPA Cindy Grief, M.D., LFAPA Saurabh Gupta, M.D., LFAPA

Life Fellows continued

Zhila Haghbin, M.D., LFAPA\* Heather Hall, M.D., LFAPA John Hawkins, M.D., LFAPA Charles Hawley, M.D., LFAPA\* Francis Hayden, M.D., LFAPA Shamina Henkel, M.D., LFAPA Charles Herrick, M.D., LFAPA\* Michael Higgins, M.D., LFAPA Khalid Hubeishv. M.D., LFAPA Mustafa Husain, M.D., LFAPA\* Itoro Ibia, M.D., LFAPA Charles Ihlenfeld, M.D., LFAPA Leticia Jacinto, M.D., LFAPA\* C Jennisch, M.D., LFAPA\* Amita Jha, M.D., LFAPA Robin Johnson, M.D., LFAPA Milind Kale, M.D., LFAPA Krishna Kambhampati, M.D., LFAPA Lawrence Katz, M.D., LFAPA Samantha Kelleher, M.D., LFAPA Urszula Kelley, M.D., LFAPA Christopher Kennedy, M.D., LFAPA Amir Khan, M.D., LFAPA Kiku Kim, M.D., LFAPA\* Kimberly Kumer, M.D., LFAPA Malathy Kuppuswamy, M.D., LFAPA Christopher Kye, M.D., LFAPA Gianluca La Monaca, M.D., LFAPA Ramaswamy Lakshmanan, M.D., LFAPA Catherine Lanteri, M.D., LFAPA\* Marc Lapointe, M.D., LFAPA Tracy Latz, M.D., LFAPA\* Cheri Lindberg, M.D., LFAPA\* David Lopez, M.D., LFAPA Kirk Lum, M.D., LFAPA Lynne Lyons, M.D., LFAPA Dwight Lysne, M.D., LFAPA Susan Maixner, M.D., LFAPA\* Tracey Marks, M.D., LFAPA

Linda McDonnaugh, M.D., LFAPA\*

Susan McNamara, M.D., LFAPA

Sejal Mehta, M.D., M.B.A., LFAPA\* Kimberly Meyer, M.D., LFAPA\* William Michael, M.D., LFAPA\* Thomas Miller, M.D., LFAPA\* Edward Minor, M.D., LFAPA\* Daniel Mollod, M.D., LFAPA\* Michelle Montemavor, M.D., LFAPA Michael Murphy, M.D., LFAPA Srikrishna Mylavarapu, M.D., LFAPA Parvathi Nanjundiah, M.D., LFAPA William Narrow, M.D., M.P.H., LFAPA Shah Nawaz, M.D., LFAPA John Nkansah, M.D., LFAPA George Northrup, M.D., LFAPA Hicham Nouaime, M.D., LFAPA Adedapo Oduwole, M.D., LFAPA David Olson, M.D., Ph.D., LFAPA\* Leslie Parsons, D.O., LFAPA Marcus Pelucio, M.D., LFAPA Javier Prado, M.D., LFAPA Trevor Prior, M.D., Ph.D., LFAPA Dheeraj Raina, M.D., LFAPA Narayanan Ramesh, M.D., LFAPA Rommel Ramos, M.D., LFAPA\* Deric Ravsten, D.O., LFAPA Stephen Raycraft, M.D., LFAPA James Reeves, M.D., LFAPA Audrey Rushin, M.D., LFAPA Jody Ryan, M.D., LFAPA Nuria Sabate, M.D., LFAPA Safia Sabri, M.D., LFAPA\* Debra Safer, M.D., LFAPA\* Kazi Salahuddin, M.D., LFAPA Alicia Salzer, M.D., LFAPA Elissa Sanders, M.D., LFAPA Natasha Sane, M.D., LFAPA Brett Schneider, M.D., LFAPA\* Amy Schuett, M.D., LFAPA Julie Schulman, M.D., LFAPA Alan Schwartz, M.D., LFAPA\* Veronique Sebastian, M.D., LFAPA Sobia Shaffie, M.D., LFAPA\*

Vikram Shah, M.D., LFAPA\* Michael Siegell, M.D., LFAPA Daphne Simeon, M.D., LFAPA Robert Sincoff, M.D., LFAPA Anil Sipahimalani, M.D., LFAPA Barbara Smith, M.D., Ph.D., LFAPA Ravindra Srivastava. M.D., LFAPA\* Joseph Strayhorn, M.D., LFAPA Debra Stultz. M.D., LFAPA Vanna Sutherland, M.D., LFAPA Safiullah Sved. M.D., LFAPA Marshall Teitelbaum, M.D., LFAPA David Telford, M.D., LFAPA Anthony Termine, M.D., LFAPA Smadar Touriman, M.D., M.Sc., Ph.D., LFAPA

Mark Tsibulsky, M.D., LFAPA
Maria Umbert, M.D., LFAPA
Kaycia Vansickle, M.D., LFAPA
Maria Vega, M.D., LFAPA
M Vidal, M.D., LFAPA
Vinita Watts, M.D., LFAPA
David Weiss, M.D., LFAPA
Jacqueline Wiebe, M.D., LFAPA
Mark Wilson, M.D., LFAPA
Wandal Winn, M.D., LFAPA
George Winny, M.D., LFAPA
Kathleen Wong, M.D., LFAPA
Nancy Younan, M.D., LFAPA
Mark Zimmerman, M.D., LFAPA

<sup>\*</sup> Life Fellows who were inadvertently omitted from the 2024 program. This year, we are proud to honor them alongside our 2025 honorees.

### 2025 Distinguished Fellows

Distinguished Fellows are nationally recognized for their demonstrated skill in administrative, educational and clinical settings. They are also noted for volunteering in mental health and medical activities of social significance and involvement in community activities. Excellence, not mere competence, is the hallmark of an APA Distinguished Fellow.

Vimal Aga, M.D., DFAPA Nassima Ait-Daoud, M.D., DFAPA Laura Albert, M.D., DFAPA Eric Alcera, M.D., DFAPA Mohammad Alghamdi, M.D., DFAPA Denis Antoine, M.D., DFAPA Nauman Ashraf, M.D., DFAPA Olukayode Awosika, M.D., DFAPA Dalia Balsamo, M.D., DFAPA Melanie Barrett, M.D., DFAPA Madeleine Becker, M.A., M.D., DFAPA David Beckert, M.D., DFAPA Jawed Bharwani, M.D., DFAPA Leah Brar, M.D., DFAPA Joseph Browning, M.D., DFAPA Jacqueline Calderone, M.D., DFAPA Anand Chaturvedi, M.D., DFAPA Siu Ping Chin Feman, M.D., DFAPA Kelly Coffman, M.D., DFAPA Rachel Dalthorp, M.D., DFAPA Zafiris Daskalakis, M.D., Ph.D, DFAPA Adriana De Julio, M.D., M.P.H., M.S., **DFAPA** 

Anish Dube, M.D., M.P.H., DFAPA Lisa Fortuna, M.D., DFAPA Sonya Gabrielian, M.D., DFAPA Kathy Gallardo, M.D., Ph.D, DFAPA Erica Garcia-Pittman, M.D., DFAPA Susan Garrett, M.D., DFAPA Yankel Girshman, D.O., DFAPA Sara Gleason, M.D., DFAPA Mayank Gupta, M.D., DFAPA Heather Hall, M.D., DFAPA Helena Hansen, M.D., Ph.D, DFAPA Mark Haygood, D.O., DFAPA Emmeline Hazaray, M.D., DFAPA Richard Holbert, M.D., DFAPA Tyehimba Hunt-Harrison, M.D., M.P.H., DFAPA Mohammad Jafferany, M.D., DFAPA Shaily Jain, M.D., DFAPA Danielle Johnson, M.D., DFAPA Ashley Jones, M.D., DFAPA Carol Koenigsberger, M.D., Ph.D. DFAPA Scott Krakower, D.O., DFAPA Danielle Kushner, M.D., DFAPA Constance Lacap, D.O., DFAPA Jessica Lammers, M.D., DFAPA Jacqueline Landess, M.D., DFAPA Umar Latif, M.D., DFAPA Cynthia Lewis, M.D., DFAPA Edward MacPhee, M.D., DFAPA Christina Mangurian, M.D., DFAPA Clinton Martin, M.D., DFAPA Eva Mathews, M.D., M.P.H., DFAPA Raphael Mayone, M.B.B.S., DFAPA Gia Merlo, M.B.A, M.D., DFAPA Gaurav Mishra, M.B.A., M.D., DFAPA Nikunjkumar Modi, M.D., DFAPA Sherin Moideen, M.D., DFAPA Daniel Morehead, M.D., DFAPA Kishan Nallapula, M.D., DFAPA Brent Nelson, M.D., DFAPA D. Newport, M.D., DFAPA Ilana Nossel, M.D., DFAPA Eiine Okoroafor, M.D., DFAPA Chaitanya Pabbati, M.D., DFAPA Priyanka Patel, M.D., M.H.A., DFAPA Anisha Patel-Dunn, D.O., DFAPA
Aum Pathare, M.D., DFAPA
Dale Peeples, M.D., DFAPA
Viorica Pencea, M.D., DFAPA
Jedidiah Perdue, M.D., DFAPA
Samuel Pullen, D.O., M.P.H., M.S.,
DFAPA
Leon Que, M.D., DFAPA
Leon Ravin, M.D., DFAPA
Ghazala Rehan, M.D., DFAPA
Carolyn Rodriguez, M.D., Ph.D, DFAPA
Lisette Rodriguez-Cabezas, M.D.,
DFAPA
James Saccomando, M.D., DFAPA

David Safani, M.B.A., M.D., DFAPA

Ravi Shah, M.B.A., M.D., DFAPA

Bushra Shah, M.D., DFAPA

Scott Shapiro, M.D., DFAPA

Svetlana Simovic, M.D., DFAPA Harmit Singh, M.B.B.S., DFAPA Amy Singleton, M.D., DFAPA Traci Speed, M.D., Ph.D, DFAPA Guitelle St. Victor, M.D., DFAPA Nicholas Tamoria, M.D., DFAPA Gen Tanaka, M.D., DFAPA Jessica Thackaberry, M.D., DFAPA Reem Utterback, M.D., DFAPA Holly Valerio, M.D., DFAPA Jeremy Veenstra-VanderWeele, M.D., DFAPA Marin Veldic, M.D., DFAPA Sunil Verma, M.D., DFAPA Sara West, M.D., DFAPA Rvan Wilke, D.O., DFAPA Michael Wolfe, M.D., DFAPA

I-Wei Shu. M.D., DFAPA

### 2025 Fellows

Fellows are certified in psychiatry by the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology Inc.; Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons of Canada; or American Osteopathic Association.

Muhammad Awais Aftab. M.D., FAPA Smita Agarkar, M.D., FAPA Nicholas Ahrendt, M.D., FAPA Chidinma Anamah, M.D., FAPA George Annas, M.D., M.P.H., FAPA Ramon Aragon, M.D., FAPA Caitlin Armijo, M.D., FAPA Nau Auna, M.D., FAPA Pratik Bahekar, M.B.B.S., FAPA Gabriela Balf-Soran, M.D., M.P.H., FAPA Stephanie Barnes-Mercado, M.D., FAPA Roxanne Bartel, M.D., FAPA Stephen Baughn, M.D., FAPA Alexis Beattie, M.D., M.P.H., FAPA Mariam Bekhit, M.D., FAPA Nicole Benson, M.D., FAPA John Beyer, M.D., FAPA Mahamaya Bhattacharyya, M.D., FAPA Adam Biesman, D.O., FAPA Jhilam Biswas, M.D., FAPA Amy Blood, M.D., FAPA Matthew Bogoyas, D.O., FAPA Henry Boilini, M.D., FAPA Mousa Botros, M.D., FAPA Margot Brandi, M.D., FAPA Gregory Brown, M.D., FAPA Joseph Calleja, M.D., FAPA Luke Carson, M.D., M.P.H., FAPA Rustin Carter, ED.D., M.D., FAPA Christopher Celano, M.D., FAPA Mohit Chauhan, M.D., FAPA Ram Chettiar, D.O., FAPA Mikhail Chizhikov. M.D., FAPA Mehak Chopra, D.O., FAPA

Siramene Abraham, M.D., FAPA

Winston Chung, M.D., FAPA Rebecca Cohen. M.D., FAPA Linda Collado, M.D., FAPA Maria Collado, M.D., FAPA Michael Collins, M.D., FAPA Robyn Cowperthwaite, M.D., FAPA Caroline Cruz-Ortiz, M.D., FAPA Ara Darakjian, M.D., FAPA Dimitry Davydow, M.D., M.P.H., FAPA Shameer Debnath, M.D., FAPA Vittoria DeLucia, M.D., FAPA Andrea DeSimone, D.O., FAPA Robert Dugger, M.D., FAPA Lance Dunlop, M.D., FAPA Karen Duong, D.O., FAPA Bassem El-Bahtity, M.D., FAPA Bradley Engwall, M.D., FAPA Okon Envenihi, M.D., FAPA Gemma Espejo, M.D., FAPA Oge Ezimakor, M.B.A., M.D., FAPA Ambarin Faizi, D.O., FAPA Simon Faynboym, M.D., FAPA Nora Feldpausch, M.D., FAPA Sabina Fink, M.D., FAPA Taria Ghafoor, M.D., FAPA Jaskirit Gill, M.D., FAPA Gopinath Gorthy, M.D., FAPA Arpita Goswami Banerjee, M.D., FAPA Kimberly Grayson, M.D., FAPA Michelle Guchereau, M.D., FAPA Zhihong Guo, M.D., FAPA Laszlo Gyulai, M.D., FAPA Zeba Hafeez, M.D., FAPA Irfan Handoo, M.D., FAPA Rehana Haque, M.D., FAPA

Sarah Hazelwood, D.O., FAPA Jorge Hernandez, M.D., FAPA Miguel Hernandez, M.D., FAPA Elena Herndon, M.D., FAPA Shannon Hillier, D.O., M.P.H., FAPA Marek Hirsch, M.D., FAPA Kim Hoang, M.D., FAPA Thomas Hoffman, M.D., FAPA Kelly Holes-Lewis, M.D., FAPA Patrick Horn, M.D., FAPA James Horst, D.O., FAPA Liwei Hua, M.D., FAPA Eva Ihle, M.D., Ph.D., FAPA Tina Jackson, M.D., FAPA Abhishek Jain, M.D., FAPA Anju Jaiswal, M.D., FAPA Ahmad Janjua, M.D., FAPA Saurabh Jauhari, M.D., FAPA Oluwole Jegede, M.D., M.P.H., FAPA Travis Jones, M.D., FAPA Divya Jose, M.B.A., M.D., FAPA Pallavi Joshi, D.O., M.A., FAPA Amie Kafer, D.O., M.S.W., FAPA Katherine Kelley, M.D., FAPA Davit Khachatryan, M.D., M.H.S.C., FAPA

Mohammad Khan, M.D., FAPA
Muhammad Khan, M.D., FAPA
Abhisek Khandai, M.D., FAPA
John Kingsley, M.D., FAPA
Scott Kirkorsky, M.D., FAPA
Boris Kiselev, M.D., FAPA
Renee Koronkowski, M.D., FAPA
Manjula Kottapalli, M.D., FAPA
David Kroll, M.D., FAPA
Jayaprabha LaFontaine, M.D.,
M.P.H., FAPA
Jeremy Landvater, M.B.A., M.D., FAPA
Erica Larson, D.O., FAPA
Hein Latt, M.D., FAPA
France Leandre, M.D., FAPA

Lisa Lindquist, M.D., FAPA

Meagan Maas, M.D., M.P.H., FAPA Riley Machal, M.D., FAPA Selena Magalotti, M.D., FAPA Mario Mangiardi, M.D., FAPA Tessa Manning, M.D., FAPA Merle Martin, M.D., FAPA Hilary Massey, M.D., FAPA Belinda McIntosh, M.D., FAPA Stephen Mecham, D.O., FAPA Erick Melendez Aguilar, M.D., FAPA Akos Mersich, M.D., FAPA John Mike, M.D., FAPA Shajiuddin Mohammed, M.D., FAPA Carlos Molina, M.D., FAPA Sahil Munjal, M.D., FAPA Sudha Nair, M.D., M.P.H., FAPA Jayasree Nandagopal, M.D., FAPA Milankumar Nathani, M.D., FAPA Justin Nepa, D.O., FAPA Uchechukwu Nnamdi, M.D., FAPA Melissa O'Dell, M.D., FAPA Adeoluwa Ogunsona, M.D., FAPA Oladele Oladapo, M.D., FAPA Ifeanyi Olele, D.O., M.B.A., M.S., FAPA Marta Olenderek, M.D., FAPA Wendy Oliver-Pyatt, M.D., FAPA Vahid Osman, M.D., FAPA Abayomi Otusajo, M.B.B.S., FAPA Amber Pastusek, M.D., M.H.A., FAPA Aimee Patel, M.D., FAPA Luke Piper, M.D., FAPA Karuna Poddar, M.D., FAPA Nicole Post, M.D., FAPA Vivek Prasad, M.D., FAPA Beena Premkumar, M.D., FAPA Samuel Preston, D.O., FAPA Sved Quadri, M.D., FAPA Benjamin Quiambao, M.D., FAPA Rahim Rahemtulla, M.D., FAPA Shefa Rahman, M.D., FAPA Deisy Ramirez Cortazar, M.D., FAPA

Fellows continued

Noshene Ranjbar, M.D., FAPA
Paula Ravitz, M.D., FAPA
Shariq Refai, M.B.A., M.D., FAPA
Taras Reshetukha, M.D., FAPA
Stephen Richardson, D.O., FAPA
Michael Ross, M.D., FAPA
Garrett Rossi, M.D., FAPA
Audra Ryan-Shepard, M.D., M.P.H.,
FAPA

Dara Sakolsky, M.D., Ph.D., FAPA Eric Santos, M.D., FAPA Alexis Seegan, M.D., FAPA Ravi Shankar, M.D., FAPA Vinod Sharma, M.D., FAPA Sohal Shipu, M.D., FAPA Nicole Shirvani, M.D., FAPA Mabbu Shiva-Prasad, M.B.B.S., FAPA Kevin Simon, M.D., M.P.H., FAPA Jean Simpson, J.D., M.D., FAPA Donald Smith, M.D., FAPA Phillip Smith, M.B.A., M.D., FAPA Jamie Sorenson, M.D., FAPA Edward Spencer, M.D., FAPA Justin Spooner, M.D., FAPA Diane St. Fleur, M.D., FAPA Milos Starovic, M.D., FAPA Daniel Stein, M.D., FAPA Lindsey Stewart, M.D., FAPA Laura Stone, M.D., FAPA Michael Strong, M.D., M.M.Ed., FAPA Kamalakar Surineni, M.D., M.P.H., FAPA

Samantha Swetter, M.D., FAPA Jainullabdin Syed, M.D., FAPA Shariff Tanious, M.D., FAPA Vera Tate, M.D., FAPA Melvin Thomas, M.D., FAPA Alexander Threlfall, M.D., FAPA John Torous, M.D., FAPA Ashley Trust, M.D., FAPA Margaret Tuttle, M.D., FAPA Monica Vega, M.D., FAPA Chittranjan Verma, M.D., FAPA Ryan Vienna, M.D., U.S.N., A.D., FAPA Bao Vo, D.O., FAPA Scott Walker, M.D., FAPA Ashley Walker, M.D., FAPA Po Wang, M.D., FAPA Jacob Wardvn. M.D., FAPA Jyoti Warikoo, M.D., FAPA Nicole Washington, D.O., FAPA Linda Welkovich, M.D., FAPA Jason West, D.O., FAPA Kari Whatley, M.D., FAPA Elizabeth Wise, M.D., FAPA Heather Wobbe, D.O., FAPA Zeshen Wu, M.D., FAPA David Yankura, M.D., FAPA Peter Yellowlees, M.D., FAPA Jeffrey Zabinski, M.A., M.S.W., M.D., FAPA Emily Zarse, M.D., FAPA Muhammad Zeshan, M.D., FAPA Jianping Zhang, M.D., FAPA

# 2025 International Distinguished Fellows

International Distinguished Fellows are internationally recognized for their demonstrated skill in administrative, educational and clinical settings. They are also noted for volunteering in mental health and medical activities of social significance and involvement in community activities. Excellence, not mere competence, is the hallmark of an APA international Distinguished Fellow.

Glenda Basubas, M.D., IDFAPA Jocelyn Gayares, M.D., IDFAPA Vinay Kumar, M.B.B.S., IDFAPA Chike Okocha, M.B.B.S., IDFAPA Marta Rondon, M.D., IDFAPA Akihito Uezato, M.D., IDFAPA Lakshmi Vijayakumar, M.D., IDFAPA Sergio Villasenor-Bayardo, M.D., IDFAPA John Chee Meng Wong, M.D., IDFAPA

### 2025 International Fellows

International Fellows have maintained membership for at least three years in the American Psychiatric Association or in the national or local psychiatric organization of their home country and are certified in psychiatry by a national board equivalent to the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology Inc., if certification exists in their home country.

Amor Joana Indab, M.B.B.S., IFAPA Charlotte Nwigwe, M.D., IFAPA Doina Vacalie, M.D., IFAPA Edwin Herazo, M.D., Ph.D., IFAPA Friedrich Wagner, M.D., IFAPA Gabriel Tatevosian, M.D., Ph.D., IFAPA Gihan Elnahas, M.B.B.S., M.D., IFAPA Jammaree Na Bangxang, M.D., IFAPA Jasdeep Gill, M.B.B.S., IFAPA Jean-Michel Darves-Bornoz, M.D., Ph.D., IFAPA John Crosby, MBChB, IFAPA Tulio Richinho, M.D., IFAPA Valeria Gularte, M.D., IFAPA

### The Program

#### Order of Events

#### **Processional**

50-year Distinguished Life Fellows, Life Fellows, and Life Members; Distinguished Life Fellows; Life Fellows; Distinguished Fellows; Fellows; International Distinguished Fellows; and International Fellows.

#### Call to Order

Ramaswamy Viswanathan, M.D., Dr.Med.Sc., DLFAPA President

### **Induction of Distinguished Fellows**

Theresa M. Miskimen Rivera, M.D., DLFAPA President-Elect

### The Pledge of Distinguished Fellowship

Distinguished fellows, you are aware that the objectives of our association are to improve the prevention of psychiatric illness, to improve access, treatment, and foster recovery for those with psychiatric disorders, and to engender hope and improve the quality of life for those with intellectual disability.

In addition, our association strives to promote research and professional education in psychiatry and allied fields; to advance the standards of all psychiatric services and facilities; to foster the cooperation of all who are concerned with the medical, psychological, social, and legal aspects of mental health and illness, including substance use disorders; to make psychiatric knowledge available to other practitioners of medicine, other scientists, and the public; and to promote the best interests of patients and those actually or potentially making use of mental health services.

Knowing these objectives, do you now voluntarily accept distinguished fellowship in our association and pledge yourselves to work toward its objectives to the utmost of your ability?

The eligible distinguished fellows will respond: I do.

The eligible distinguished fellows will repeat with the President-Elect:

I will faithfully dedicate myself above all to the welfare of my patients; to maintain the dignity of my profession and the practice of medicine; to supplement my own judgment with the wisdom and counsel of

The Program continued

specialists in fields, settings, and cultures other than my own; to render assistance willingly to my own colleagues; to be generous in giving professional aid to those who need it; to enhance my knowledge by continuing study, by attendance at meetings of my professional colleagues, by association with physicians of eminence, and by freely exchanging experience and opinion with my colleagues.

I further pledge to avoid commercialism and inequity in my professional life; to refrain from seeking the public eye for self-aggrandizement; to set fees commensurate with my services and adjust them to the circumstances of my patients; and to avoid any financial or discriminatory practice whatsoever that might debase my profession.

### **Introduction of Distinguished Life Fellows**

Theresa M. Miskimen Rivera, M.D., DLFAPA

#### Introduction of Fellows and Life Fellows

Ramaswamy Viswanathan, M.D., Dr.Med.Sc., DLFAPA

### Introduction of International Fellows and Distinguished Fellows

Ramaswamy Viswanathan, M.D., Dr.Med.Sc., DLFAPA

### Introduction of the 50-Year Distinguished Life Fellows, Life Fellows and Life Members

Ramaswamy Viswanathan, M.D., Dr.Med.Sc., DLFAPA

### Introduction of Membership Committee and Its Chairperson

Ramaswamy Viswanathan, M.D., Dr.Med.Sc., DLFAPA

### Awards for 2025

All awards will be presented by Ramaswamy Viswanathan, M.D., Dr.Med. Sc., DLFAPA

### **Special Presidential Commendations**

Gia Merlo, M.D., M.B.A., M.Ed. Rahn Bailey, M.D. David Baron, D.O., MS.Ed. Maria Oquendo, M.D., Ph.D. Jagannathan Srinivasaraghavan, M.D. Mantosh Dewan, M.D.

### **Distinguished Service Awards**

Karandeep Sonu Gaind, M.D. Rodgers Wilson, M.D. Katherine Wisner, M.D., M.S.

### **Organizational Distinguished Service Award**

The Clinical Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation Society (CTMSS)

### The William C. Menninger Memorial Convocation Lecture

Established in 1972, this lecture honors the late William C. Menninger, M.D., president of the APA 1948-1949, who brought to the association a formalized Convocation of Fellows, first held in 1956.

Siddhartha Mukherjee, M.D., D.Phil. is a physician, researcher, and author, serving as Associate Professor of Medicine at Columbia University and an oncologist at its medical center. He is renowned for his award-winning trilogy—*The Emperor of All Maladies, The Gene*, and *The Song of the Cell*—which has shaped public understanding of medicine and science.

### Awards Presented at the Convocation

### **Special Presidential Commendation**

Gia Merlo, M.D., M.B.A., M.Ed., DipABLM, FACLM, is a clinical professor of nursing and psychiatry at NYU Grossman School of Medicine, Senior Advisor on Wellness, and a fellow of the American College of Lifestyle Medicine. She is the author of Lifestyle Nursing (2022) and Principles of Medical Professionalism (2021), and Associate Editor of the American Journal of Lifestyle Medicine. Merlo contributes to ACLM's curriculum and board review courses, and her upcoming books focus on professionalism, lifestyle psychiatry, and nursing.



Gia Merlo, M.D., M.B.A., M.Ed.

She also serves on the boards of Plant-Powered Metro New York and the Global Positive Health Institute. Merlo is part of NYU Langone Health's Psychiatry Faculty Group Practice and completed a Master of Education in Health Professions at Johns Hopkins University, where she is now adjunct faculty. Previously, she was an associate dean at Rice University and a faculty member at Baylor College of Medicine, University of Pennsylvania, Texas Children's Hospital, and Children's Hospital of Philadelphia. Her career spans nearly 30 years in clinician care, wellness, and medical education, with a focus on mental health and professional development.

Rahn Kennedy Bailey, M.D., serves as Chair of Psychiatry and Assistant Dean of Community Engagement at LSU's Kathleen & John Bricker Health Sciences Center and, as of 2024, as Academic Medical and Psychiatric Director for the New Orleans Correctional Justice Center Mental Health Services Unit. He previously chaired psychiatry departments at Meharry Medical College, Wake Forest Medical School, and the National Medical Association. His research spans psychotic disorders, mood disorders, forensic



Rahn Bailey, M.D.

psychiatry, health disparities, healthcare reform, and violence, with 86 peer-reviewed publications and three books published on health disparities, gun violence, and intimate partner violence. Dr. Bailey has held numerous leadership roles, including President of the National Medical Association, Chair of the NMA/Cobb Research Foundation, and Board Trustee at Rutgers University. His many honors include NMA Physician of the Year (2006), AMA Co-Chair for the Commission to End Health Disparities, and the APA's Solomon Carter Fuller Award (2024). A committed mentor and advocate, Dr. Bailey has devoted his career to advancing patient care, addressing health inequities, and fostering the next generation of medical professionals.

avid Baron, D.O., MS.Ed., is Senior Vice President and Provost of the Western University of Health Sciences and serves as Chief Academic Officer of the university. He is responsible for academic, accreditation, and budgetary affairs. Dr. Baron joined the university in May 2018 after serving for eight years in roles within the Department of Psychiatry at the Keck School of Medicine, including Vice Dean for Global Health, Professor of Psychiatry and Neurosurgery, Vice Chair of the Department, and Chief of



David Baron, D.O., MS.Ed.

Service at Keck-USC Hospital. He is working as a tenured Professor at Western University of Health Sciences, research Professor at Claremont Graduate University. He received his DO degree from the Philadelphia College of Osteopathic Medicine (PCOM) and a Master of Science in Education from the University of Southern California (USC). He is the former Deputy Clinical Director of the National Institute of Mental Health (NIMH), former President of the American College of Neuropsychiatry and the Group for the Advancement of Psychiatry, and chaired the Department of Psychiatry at Temple University School of Medicine from 1998-2010. Dr. Baron was named a National Fulbright scholar in 2017-18 and conducted his research as Distinguished Chair in Brain Research at the University of Calgary. He also is the recipient of a Fulbright Specialist Award.

aria Oquendo, M.D., Ph.D., is Professor and Chairman of Psychiatry at University of Pennsylvania. Her medical education is from Columbia University and Payne Whitney Clinic, New York Hospital Cornell. She is a member of the National Academy of Medicine, one of the highest honors in medicine. Dr. Oquendo uses multimodal imaging to map brain abnormalities in mood disorders and suicidal behavior. Her expertise ranges from psychopharmacology to Global Mental Maria Oquendo, M.D., Ph.D. Health, with over 385 peer-reviewed publications.



Dr. Oquendo is Past President of APA and the International Academy of Suicide Research and chairs the American Foundation for Suicide Prevention's Scientific Board of Directors. She is President-Flect of the American College of Neuropsychopharmacology.

agannathan Srinivasaraghavan, M.D., Professor Emeritus of Psychiatry at Southern Illinois University School of Medicine, earned his medical degree from the Medical College in Thanjavur, Madras. India, and completed his residency at Chicago Medical School. A Distinguished Life Fellow of the APA, he has mentored international medical graduates (IMGs) throughout his career, advocated for minority representation in psychiatry, and chaired the APA's Committee of Representatives of Minority/Underrepresented



Jagannathan Srinivasaraghavan, M.D.

Groups. He was the first Asian American IMG nominated for APA President and received the George Tarjan Award in 2013 for his contributions to psychiatry and IMG advocacy. An avid traveler and accomplished speaker, Dr. Srinivasaraghavan has lectured in more than thirty countries, planted the Indian flag at the North Pole, visited the Arctic over a dozen times, journeyed to the South Pole, and circumnavigated the globe nine times. He ranks among the top ten travelers on the Most Traveled People list and remains active in multiple professional organizations.

antosh Dewan, M.D., currently serves as president of Upstate Medical University. He is a SUNY Distinguished Service Professor in the Department of Psychiatry. He is former chair of the department and has also served as director of Undergraduate Education and director of Residency Training. He was interim dean of the College of Medicine. Throughout his career, which began at Upstate Medical in 1979 as an assistant professor of psychiatry, he has written 35 books and book chapters and 75 papers, and given



Mantosh Dewan, M.D.

hundreds of presentations on topics that range from brain imaging and economics of mental health care to psychotherapy and medical education. His work has been funded by grants from the National Institute of Mental Health and the Health Resources and Services Administration. Dr. Dewan has an active clinical practice and is listed in The Best Doctors in America. He is a Distinguished Life Fellow of the American Psychiatric Association and has received the Scientific Achievement Award from the Indo-American Psychiatrists Association, the Exemplary Psychiatrist Award from the National Alliance for the Mentally III, the 2010 George Tarjan Award from the American Psychiatric Association, and designated an "Exemplary Chair" by SUNY in 2011. He holds a doctor of medicine from University of Bombay (currently Mumbai University). Dr. Dewan conducted his residency at University Hospital, SUNY Health Science Center in Syracuse.

### **Distinguished Service Award**

Established by the APA Board of Trustees in 1964 to honor individuals and/or organizations who have contributed exceptional meritorious service to the field of psychiatry and/or the American Psychiatric Association. These awards are selected by the Board of Trustees based on the recommendation of the Distinguished Service Awards Work Group.

arandeep Sonu Gaind, M.D., is a University of Toronto Professor and Governor, and Chief of Psychiatry at Sunnybrook Health Sciences Centre. He has served as President of three provincial and one national association, on the Board of the World Psychiatric Association, and (in another life) on Canada's first two International Physics Olympiad teams. He has significantly impacted policy and health system improvements, including bringing needed evidence to Canada's assisted suicide policies that national associations have neglected.



Karandeep Sonu Gaind, M.D.

He believes medical experts ethically must inform policy with evidence, not just ideology, and consider impacts on the most marginalized to avoid perpetuating policies of privilege.

Rodgers Wilson, M.D., is board certified in adult, forensic, and administrative and psychiatric management by the APA. He was a U.S. Public Health Service Corp physician and received the Director's Award for outstanding service. He served as Cigna Healthcare's National Medical Executive and Arizona Market Medical Executive, the Arizona Department of Behavioral Health's CMO, Arizona's Substance Abuse Authority, Friends Hospital's CMO, and Isaac Ray Center's VP of Workplace Violence and Education. He taught at the University



Rodgers Wilson, M.D.

of Cincinnati, Drexel University, Rush Medical College, and Creighton University. He's an APA Distinguished Life Fellow, Mental Health Equity Ambassador, and early career mentor.

atherine Wisner, M.D., M.S., is Professor of Psychiatry and Pediatrics at Children's National Hospital and Obstetrics/Gynecology at George Washington University in Washington, DC. She is a pioneer in the field of perinatal psychiatry and internationally recognized as an expert in the treatment of mood disorders during pregnancy and postpartum. Her research has advanced our understanding of the natural history of mood disorders across childbearing, benefit-harm decision-making for pharmacotherapy, and the



Katherine Wisner, M.D., M.S.

pharmacokinetics of medications during pregnancy and lactation. Dr. Wisner has published over 280 peer-reviewed publications and 23 book chapters. She founded the Marcé Society for Perinatal Mental Health in North America.

### **Organizational Distinguished Service Award**

The Clinical TMS Society (CTMSS), founded in 2013, is an international organization dedicated to optimizing clinical practice, supporting research, and expanding access to evidence-based Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation (TMS). With over 1,100 members,



The Clinical Transcranial Magnetic Stimulation Society (CTMSS)

8 committees, and 29 elected board members, CTMSS advances psychiatry through TMS certification courses, grand rounds, mentorship programs, special interest groups, the TMS Journal, clinical guidelines, consensus papers, payor advocacy, and scientific meetings. Its non-profit arm, FACTMS, increases public awareness and improves TMS access through free clinics and fundraising campaigns. CTMSS's impactful contributions to mental health care make it a deserving recipient of the APA Distinguished Service Award.

### **Award Lectures**

### **Administrative Psychiatry Award**

The Administrative Psychiatry Award, established in 1983, recognizes an individual for major contributions to the body of knowledge concerning the management of mental health services delivery systems and whose effectiveness has made him/her a role model for other psychiatrists.

Tobias Wasser, M.D., serves at Quinnipiac University as the Chair of Psychiatry for the Frank H. Netter MD School of Medicine and at Hartford Healthcare as a Regional Chair of Psychiatry and Behavioral Health. He completed his training at Yale and previously served in their faculty, holding academic leadership roles and working as a leader in the state forensic mental health system. Dr. Wasser has been recognized as a national leader in forensic psychiatry and medical education and has received multiple awards in the



Tobias Wasser, M.D.

areas of administrative psychiatry, medical education, mentorship and psychiatric ethics.

### **Adolf Meyer Award**

The Adolf Meyer Award, established in 1957, honors an individual for lifetime achievement in psychiatric research. The accompanying Adolf Meyer Award Lecture serves to advance psychiatric research by enabling psychiatrists and other conference attendees to hear and interact with an outstanding research scientist.

harles B. Nemeroff, M.D., is chair and professor with the Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Sciences, co-directs the Charmaine and Gordon McGill Center for Psychedelic Research and Therapy, and is director of the Institute for Early Life Adversity Research. He received his medical and doctorate degrees in neurobiology from the University of North Carolina School of Medicine and completed his psychiatry residency training at UNC and Duke University. His research focuses on the pathophysiology of mood and anxiety disorders



Charles B. Nemeroff, M.D.

and the role of child abuse and neglect as a major risk factor, as well as the role of mood disorders as a risk factor for major medical disorders.

### **Alexandra Symonds Award**

The Alexandra Symonds Award — established in 1997 in memory of Alexandra Symonds, M.D., an APA Fellow and co-founder of the Association of Women Psychiatrists — recognizes and honors a psychiatrist who has made significant contributions to promoting women's health and the advancement of women.

inda Chaudron, M.D., M.S., currently serves on the editorial board as Vice President and R.G. Bing-You Chair for MaineHealth Department of Medical Education and Professor in the Department of Psychiatry at Tufts University School of Medicine. During her career, she has been a leader in academic medicine, most recently with a focus on innovation in the continuum of medical education. She is recognized as an expert clinician and researcher in perinatal mental health and has conducted epidemiological and health services



Linda Chaudron, M.D., M.S.

studies. She is known nationally and internationally for her research, publications and lectures advancing women in medicine and science.

### Chester M. Pierce Human Rights Award

The APA Foundation (APAF) Chester M. Pierce Human Rights Award recognizes the extraordinary efforts of individuals and organizations to promote the human rights of populations with mental health needs by bringing attention to their work. Originally established in 1990 to raise awareness of human rights abuses, the award was renamed in 2017 to honor Chester M. Pierce, M.D. (1927-2016) and recognize his dedication as an innovative researcher on humans in extreme environments, an advocate against disparities, stigma, and discrimination, and as a pioneer and visionary in global mental health. In 2021, the award was endowed by the APAF's Chester M. Pierce Human Rights Endowment Campaign.

harles C. Dike, M.D., M.P.H., is Professor of Psychiatry at Yale University, and Chief Medical Officer, Connecticut Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services. He is also immediate past president of the American Academy of Psychiatry and the Law (AAPL). He is a DFAPA and Fellow of the Royal College of Psychiatrists of England. He is past Chair of the Ethics Committees of APA and AAPL, and author of Ethics Corner in Psychiatric News. He is a Special Government Employee, National Advisory Council, SAMHSA. AAPL



Charles C. Dike, M.D., M.P.H.

established the Charles Dike Scholarship Award for his tireless work on Diversity and Inclusion and other initiatives.

### David A. Mrazek, M.D., Memorial Award

Established in 2014 to honor David A. Mrazek, M.D., FRCPsych, and to recognize his contributions as a pioneer in the field of pharmacogenomics. Selected by the Mrazek Award Committee, this award is given to an individual for recent work in psychiatric pharmacogenomics and his/her ability to translate research findings to a clinical audience.

enry R. Kranzler, M.D., is the Karl E. Rickels Professor of Psychiatry and Director of the Center for Studies of Addiction at the University of Pennsylvania's Perelman School of Medicine and the Co-Associate Director for Research in the MIRECC at the Crescenz VAMC. His research focuses on the genetics and neuroimaging of substance use disorders and the treatment of substance use disorders, with a particular interest in pharmacogenetics. His research has been continuously supported since 1987 by grants



Henry R. Kranzler, M.D.

from the National Institutes of Health. He has authored more than 700 publications, including journal articles, book chapters and books.

### Frank J. Menolascino Award

Established in 1997 in memory of Frank J. Menolascino, M.D., an authority on mental illness in persons with intellectual developmental disorders and/or developmental disabilities. The award recognizes an APA member who has made significant contributions to psychiatric services for persons with intellectual development disorders and developmental disabilities through direct clinical services and/or dissemination of knowledge in this field through teaching or research.

erim Munir, M.D., is Director of Psychiatry in the Leadership Education Program in Neurodevelopmental Disabilities at Boston Children's Hospital and Professor of Pediatrics (Developmental Psychiatry) and Society Fellow, Harvard Medical School. His research focuses on autism and intellectual developmental disorders (IDD). He has served as a member of the WHO ICD-11 Expert Review Group on Classification of IDD, the WHO Expert Group Rehabilitation 2030 on IDD, and the SAMSHA Expert Group on Serious Mental



Kerim Munir, M.D.

Illness in IDD. He chairs the World Psychiatric Association Section on Psychiatry of IDD.  $\blacksquare$ 

### **George Tarjan Award**

Established in 1992, in memory of George Tarjan, M.D., to recognize an individual who has made significant contributions to the enhancement of the integration of International Medical Graduates into American psychiatry.

Palkozar Adam, M.D., is a renowned child and adolescent psychiatrist, researcher, educator, mentor, advocate and professor emeritus of psychiatry at the University of Missouri. She is a distinguished life fellow of both the American Psychiatric Association and the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry. She has presented nationally and internationally on everything from providing culturally informed care to hiring international medical graduates to preventing mental illness. Her awards include the



Balkozar Adam, M.D.

Agnes Purcell McGavin Award for Distinguished Career Achievement in Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, Jeanne Spurlock, MD Award on Diversity and Culture and AACAP Assembly Catchers in the Rye award.

### John Fryer Award

The John Fryer Award, established in 2005, honors an individual who has contributed to improving the mental health of sexual minorities. The award is named for Dr. John Fryer, a gay psychiatrist who played a crucial role in prompting APA to review the scientific data and to remove homosexuality from its diagnostic list of mental disorders in 1973.

hristopher A. McIntosh, M.D., M.Sc., FRCPC, DFAPA, is an Associate Professor of Psychiatry at the University of Toronto. He is the outgoing Editor-in-chief of The Journal of Gay and Lesbian Mental Health, the official journal of The Association of LGBTQ+ Psychiatrists. He is a Senior Fellow and Publications Board member of the Group for the Advancement of Psychiatry and a former chair of GAP's LGBTQ+ committee. He has written many book chapters on LGBTQ+ mental health for multiple publications. He currently



Christopher McIntosh, M.D.

teaches, supervises and does clinical work at Michael Garron Hospital in the Toronto East Health Network. ■

### Kun-Po Soo Award

Established in 1987 to recognize significant contributions toward understanding the impact and import of Asian cultural heritage in areas relevant to psychiatry. The award also seeks to encourage scholarship and research in culture-specific mental health issues and treatment needs of Asian populations and to stimulate scientific exchange on transcultural issues. This award is funded by a grant from the late Kun-Po Soo, M.D., Ph.D.

Ravi Chandra, M.D., is a psychiatrist, writer and compassion educator in San Francisco, and a Distinguished Fellow of the American Psychiatric Association. He received an Sc.B. with Honors from Brown University, an M.D. from Stanford University School of Medicine, and completed a residency in general adult psychiatry from the University of California, San Francisco. He writes for Psychology Today and East Wind eZine and has written nearly 500 essays since 2006. He regularly teaches, has worked in community mental health, serves a



Ravi Chandra, M.D., DFAPA

diverse group of patients, and facilitates Healing Circles for Change. He is also an award-winning poet, author, and filmmaker. ■

### Manfred S. Guttmacher Award

Established in 1975 to honor outstanding contributions to the literature of forensic psychiatry, in the form of a book, monograph, paper or other work presented at any professional meeting or published in the previous year. This award is co-sponsored by the American Academy of Psychiatry and the Law.

Professor, Director of Forensic Services, and Forensic Psychiatry Fellowship Director in the Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Sciences at the University of Texas Medical Branch, as well as Lecturer in Law and Psychiatry at the Yale School of Medicine. He has held leadership positions in public mental health systems and now provides civil and criminal forensic psychiatric consultation and evaluation in an academic medical setting. His research focuses on the intersection of psychiatry,



Rocksheng Zhong, M.D., M.H.S.

law, and ethics, with particular emphasis on mental competencies, consent, and the institutional care of people with mental illness.

Tobias Wasser, M.D., serves at Quinnipiac University as the Chair of Psychiatry for the Frank H. Netter MD School of Medicine and at Hartford Healthcare as a Regional Chair of Psychiatry and Behavioral Health. He completed his training at Yale and previously served in their faculty, holding academic leadership roles and working as a leader in the state forensic mental health system. Dr. Wasser has been recognized as a national leader in forensic psychiatry and medical education and has received multiple awards in the



Tobias Wasser, M.D.

areas of administrative psychiatry, medical education, mentorship and psychiatric ethics.  $\blacksquare$ 

### Nasrallah Family Award for Advances in Psychiatric Neuroscience

Established in 2020 and endowed by the Nasrallah family, this award recognizes distinguished contributions to Psychiatric Neuroscience that have had a major impact on the field and/or altered the practice of psychiatry.

A lan F. Schatzberg, M.D., received his medical degree from NYU and completed his psychiatric residency at the Massachusetts Mental Health Center (MMHC). He served in leadership positions at McLean Hospital, including Interim Psychiatrist in Chief, and clinical director of the MMHC and professor of psychiatry at Harvard Medical School. He served as Chairman of the Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Sciences at Stanford University, where he directs the Stanford Mood Disorders Center. He has been



Alan F. Schatzberg, M.D.

president of the American Psychiatric Association, American College of Neuropsychopharmacology, and Society of Biological Psychiatry. He has received numerous awards from them, the Anna Monika Foundation, and the Brain and Behavior Foundation.

### Oskar Pfister Award

Established in 1983 in memory of Oskar Pfister, an ordained minister who studied and used psychoanalytic principles in his work, to honor outstanding contributions in the fields of psychiatry and religion. This award is supported by the Association of Professional Chaplains and the Harding Foundation.

A lexander Moreira-Almeida, M.D., Ph.D., is Professor of Psychiatry at the Federal University of Juiz de Fora (UFJF) School of Medicine and Founder and Director of the Research Center in Spirituality and Health, Brazil. Founding chair of the section on spirituality of the Brazilian Psychiatric Association (2014-21). Former chair of the Sections on Religion, Spirituality and Psychiatry of the World Psychiatric Association (WPA) (2014-21) when coordinated the WPA Position Statement on Spirituality and Religion in Psychiatry. Author



Alexander Moreira-Almeida, M.D., Ph.D.

of more than 200 papers published in peer-reviewed journals and book chapters. More than 550 presentations at academic meetings, including 160 abroad in 19 countries.

### **Patient Advocacy Award**

The Patient Advocacy Award, established in 1987, recognizes a public figure who champions the rights and needs of persons with mental illness and substance use disorders.

hmed Hankir, MBChB, MRCPsych, is Consultant Psychiatrist (Canada and UK), Honorary Visiting Professor at the School of Medicine, Cardiff University (UK), Assistant Professor of Psychiatry at Western University (Canada), and Professor of Academic Psychiatry at Carrick Institute for Graduate Studies (USA). Professor Hankir's research interests include global and Muslim mental health and pioneering and evaluating innovative interventions that reject mental health-related stigma and Islamophobia and he has published widely in these areas.



Ahmed Hankir, MBChB, MRCPsych

### **Psychiatric Services Achievement Awards**

Since 1949, the Psychiatric Services Achievement Awards program has recognized creative models of service delivery and innovative programs for persons with mental illness or disabilities.

### **Gold Award Winner**

#### **Bend Health**

onika Roots, M.D., FAPA, is the Co-Founder, President and Chief Medical Officer of Bend Health. Along with her husband Kurt Roots, she launched Bend Health to address the mental health crisis facing today's kids and teens. As a mother and child and adolescent psychiatrist, Dr. Roots wanted to create a scalable solution that focuses on a whole family approach. Dr. Roots serves as an assistant adjunct professor at the University of Wisconsin-Madison. She previously served as the Chief Medical Officer at Sanvello Health and the Vice President of Health Services at Teladoc Health.



Monika Roots, M.D.

#### Silver Award Winner

### Maternal Outreach through Telehealth for Rural Sites (MOTHeRS) Project

Sy Saeed, M.D., M.S., DLFAPA, FACPsych, served as the Chairman of the Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Medicine at the Brody School of Medicine, East Carolina University from 2004 to 2022. He is the Founding Director of the Center for Telepsychiatry at ECU and the North Carolina Statewide Telepsychiatry Program (NC-STeP), a state funded program serving over 60 hospitals and community-based sites across North Carolina. Dr. Saeed has published extensively in the areas of evidence-based practices; telepsychiatry;



Sy Saeed, M.D., M.S., DLFAPA, FACPsych

and psychiatric administration and leadership. He has been involved in funded research both as a principal investigator and co-investigator, with over \$30,000,000 in external funding since 2004. He has lectured and presented nationwide and internationally, including being an invited speaker at a White House Convening on telehealth in 2016. In 2019 he was the recipient of the prestigious Gov. Oliver Max Gardner Award, the highest UNC award, selected by the UNC Board of Governors, to recognize UNC system faculty who have "made the greatest contribution to the welfare of the human race."

#### **Bronze Award Winner**

### Rapid Access and Stabilization Program (RASP)

Vincent Agyapong, M.D., M.Sc., Ph.D., is a Professor of Psychiatry and Global Mental Health and the Head of the Departments of Psychiatry at Dalhousie University and Nova Scotia Health Authority Central Zone. His leadership and research focus primarily on innovations that expand access to quality mental health services. He founded the Nova Scotia Rapid Access and Stabilization Program and Transcultural Mental Health Program and provided physician coleadership to establish the Edmonton Access



Vincent Agyapong, M.D., M.Sc., Ph.D.

24/7 Mental Health Program in Alberta. His ResilienceNhope digital mental health programs have had over 100,000 subscribers, and he has received over \$8 Million in research grants. ■

National Professor at the Department of Psychiatry, Dalhousie University, Halifax, Canada. She's the Clinical Academic Lead for the Nova Scotia Rapid Access and Stabilization Program. She completed her Postgraduate Psychiatry Residency Training at the Royal College of Surgeons (RCSI) in Ireland and her Undergraduate Medical Training with the College of Medicine, University of Nigeria Teaching Hospital, Enugu Campus. She's very passionate about the field of psychiatry and derives joy in seeing the



Ngozi Ezeanozie, M.D.

transformative impact that quick and qualitative access to structured psychiatry care has in people with mental health difficulties.

### Award for Research in Psychiatry

Established in 1949 as the Hofheimer Prize, the Award for Research in Psychiatry recognizes a single distinguished contribution, a body of work or a lifetime contribution that has had a major impact on the field and/or altered the practice of psychiatry.

A nissa Abi-Dargham, M.D., is Chair of Psychiatry and Behavioral Health, Lourie Endowed Chair in Psychiatry, SUNY Distinguished Professor, and Associate Dean for Clinical and Translational Science at Stony Brook University's Renaissance School of Medicine. She is an expert in molecular imaging, pharmacology, schizophrenia and addiction. She is an internationally recognized leader in the use of molecular imaging of the human brain to study schizophrenia and its comorbidity with addiction. She received the



Anissa Abi-Dargham, M.D.

Leiber Prize for Outstanding Research in Schizophrenia from the Brain and Behavior Research Foundation. She is a member of the National Academy of Medicine and served as President of the American College for Neuropsychopharmacology in 2017.

### Simon Bolivar Award

Established in 1975 to honor a prominent advocate for Hispanics and is designed to sensitize the APA membership to the mental health problems and goals of Hispanics. This award is supported by Eli Lilly and Company and Pfizer Inc. and is selected by the APA Council on Minority Mental Health and Health Disparities.

erardo Villarreal, M.D., attended medical school at Universidad LaSalle in Mexico City and completed his psychiatry residency at the Institute of Living in Harford, CT. He pursued a research fellowship in anxiety disorders at MUSC in Charleston SC and CBT training at the Beck Institute. He is currently professor of Psychiatry and Neuroscience at the University of New Mexico School of Medicine and Director of Psychiatry Research at the Albuquerque VAMC. His areas of clinical and research interest include psychopharmacology,



Gerardo Villareal, M.D.

neurobiology and treatment of PTSD. Dr. Villarreal is also pursuing interests in philosophy of mind, agency and consciousness. ■

### Solomon Carter Fuller Award

Established in 1969 to honor a citizen who has pioneered in an area which has significantly benefited the quality of life of Black people. This award is selected by the APA Council on Minority Health and Health Disparities.

ynthia Lewis, M.D., attended Howard University and Meharry Medical College. She completed her psychiatric residency at Johns Hopkins and was named the First Female African American Chief Resident. She was asked to resume her role as Director of Psychiatric Emergency Services in 2019. While in the Emergency Department, she became aware of patients with severe mental illness who were failing treatment. She provided testimony that helped pass Maryland's first Assisted Outpatient Treatment Program law in 2024. Passionate about treating our



Cynthia Major Lewis, M.D.

most vulnerable and disenfranchised, she is a tireless advocate for her patients and is accustomed to getting into good trouble. ■

### Vestermark Psychiatry Educator Award

The Vestermark Psychiatry Educator Award recognizes excellence, leadership, and creativity in the field of psychiatric education and is given annually to a psychiatric educator for outstanding contributions to the education and development of psychiatrists. The award was established in 1969 in memory of Seymour Vestermark, M.D., chief of the National Institute of Mental Health Training Branch from 1948 to 1959 and an authority in the field of professional mental health education. The award concentrates on the field of psychiatric education in its broadest context, with special emphasis on preparation of teachers, use of new educational tools, and improved teaching techniques in the field of mental health.

Allan Tasman, M.D., is Emeritus Professor and Schwab Endowed Chair in Social and Community Psychiatry at the University of Louisville. A leader in psychiatric education in medical student, residency, and CME, as APA program chair he introduced interactive learning sessions still in use. He was president of AADPRT, AAP, AACDP, and APA. He oversaw the establishment of the journal Academic Psychiatry, and founded two other journals. He founded the school wide Distinction in Research program in



Allan Tasman, M.D.

Louisville, and the Distance Learning Program in psychotherapy in AAPDPP. As Secretary for Education in the WPA he implemented global training guidelines with a special focus on low resource countries. He is lead editor for an internationally acclaimed textbook, now called Tasman's Psychiatry 5th edition. A sought after lecturer, supervisor, and mentor, he has been recognized with multiple awards for psychiatric education.

# Viswanathan Family Lifestyle Medicine and Psychiatry Award

The Viswanathan Family Lifestyle Medicine and Psychiatry Award recognizes significant scholarly and service contributions to the promotion of lifestyle interventions in mental and physical health.

ean Ornish, M.D., is the founder and president of the non-profit Preventive Medicine Research Institute and Clinical Professor of Medicine at UCSF and at UCSD. For over 47 years, Dr. Ornish has directed clinical research demonstrating, for the first time, that comprehensive lifestyle changes may often begin to reverse coronary heart disease, prostate cancer, and other chronic diseases without drugs or surgery as well as "turning on" disease-preventing genes and "turning off" genes that promote cancer and heart disease, as well as the



Dean Ornish, M.D.

first controlled study showing that these lifestyle changes may begin to reverse cellular aging by lengthening telomeres, the ends of our chromosomes which regulate aging (in collaboration with Dr. Elizabeth Blackburn, Nobel Laureate). Medicare created a new benefit category, "intensive cardiac rehabilitation," to provide coverage for this program, which is now being covered when offered virtually. Dr. Ornish received his M.D. from the Baylor College of Medicine, was a clinical fellow in medicine at Harvard Medical School, and completed a residency in internal medicine at the Massachusetts General Hospital.

# Other Awards (Not Presented at Convocation)

### Agnes Purcell McGavin Award for Distinguished Career Achievement in Child and Adolescent Psychiatry

Established in 2000 in memory of APA Fellow Agnes Purcell McGavin, M.D., to honor a psychiatrist who have made significant contributions in teaching, research and care of children and adolescents. This award is selected by the APA Agnes Purcell McGavin Selection Committee.

Pryan H. King, M.D., is the Lisa and John Pritzker Distinguished Professor of Psychiatry and Vice Chair of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry for UCSF. At the University of Washington and at Dartmouth, he is responsible for developing and implementing clinical services for youth. He was instrumental in creating statewide child psychiatry access portals for primary care in Washington and California. With his leadership, Seattle Children's and the UCSF Benioff Children's Hospitals have become ranked among the best nationally. Dr. King has authored



Bryan King, M.D., M.B.A.

over 120 academic publications and is the principal author of the Autism chapter in the DSM-5TR.  $\blacksquare$ 

### Agnes Purcell McGavin Award for Prevention

The Agnes Purcell McGavin Award for Prevention, established in 1964, recognizes a child and adolescent psychiatrist who has made significant contributions to the prevention of mental disorders in children and adolescents and influenced the general well-being of young people. Funded by a bequest from Dr. Agnes Purcell McGavin.

Palkozar Adam, M.D., is a renowned child and adolescent psychiatrist, researcher, educator, mentor, advocate and professor emeritus of psychiatry at the University of Missouri. She is a distinguished life fellow of both the American Psychiatric Association and the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry. She has presented nationally and internationally on everything from providing culturally informed care to hiring international medical graduates to preventing mental illness. Her awards include the



Balkozar Adam, M.D.

Agnes Purcell McGavin Award for Distinguished Career Achievement in Child and Adolescent Psychiatry, Jeanne Spurlock, MD Award on Diversity and Culture and AACAP Assembly Catchers in the Rye award.

# Alexander Gralnick, M.D. Award for Research in Schizophrenia

Named after the late Alexander Gralnick, M.D., this award acknowledges research achievements in the treatment of schizophrenia and psychosocial aspects of the disease process.

Vinod H. Srihari, M.D., is a Professor in the Department of Psychiatry at Yale University School of Medicine and Director of the Program for Specialized Treatment Early in Psychosis (STEP) at the Connecticut Mental Health Center (CMHC). His scholarly focus is on improving the outcomes of early course schizophrenia spectrum disorders. His research interests span the translational continuum from studies of etiology and pathophysiology to interventions on clinical samples and service level innovations. Dr. Srihari also consults with academic



Vinod H. Srihari, M.D.

and non-academic healthcare systems that seek to initiate or refine early intervention services for recent onset or 'first-episode' psychosis. ■

### **Bruno Lima Award**

The Bruno Lima Award in Disaster Psychiatry recognizes outstanding contributions of APA members in the care and understanding of the victims of disaster while engaged in providing consultation, education, training and awareness on mental health and disaster issues, providing direct service delivery and/or designing disaster response plans. The award is presented to recipients by their respective District Branches.

Grant Hilary Brenner, M.D., is a board-certified psychiatrist and psychoanalyst specializing in trauma, dissociation, and disaster mental health. He is a Distinguished Fellow of the American Psychiatric Association and is on faculty at Mount Sinai and the Manhattan Institute for Psychoanalysis. Dr. Brenner co-edited Disaster Psychiatry: Readiness, Evaluation and Treatment (2nd ed.) and co-created the Model for Adaptive Response to Complex Cyclical Disasters. He co-chairs GAP's Committee on Disasters. Trauma, and



Grant Hilary Brenner, M.D.

Global Health and is on the Board of Vibrant Emotional Health, advising Disaster Services. He is in private practice in Manhattan and has been providing TMS since 2010. ■

Saundra Maass-Robinson, M.D., is a Distinguished Life Fellow of the American Psychiatric Association and a member of the American College of Psychiatrists. She has served on the APA's Committee on Disaster Psychiatry and been a volunteer with the Georgia Red Cross, and she advocates for psychiatrists to become aware, prepared for, and involved in the mental health needs of disaster survivors. A past recipient of the Psychiatrist of the Year award from the Georgia District Branch, she has responded to disasters



Saundra Maass-Robinson, M.D.

worldwide since 1989, including Project HOPE's relief mission to Southeast Asia after the 2004 tsunami. ■

mar Reda, M.D., is a board-certified psychiatrist, a Harvard-trained trauma expert, the founder of HTI (Healing Trauma Institute), and the author of 8 books including The Wounded Healer, Untangled, Silence is Betrayal, and Healing Possibilities. He lives with his wife and 3 daughters in Colorado.



Omar Reda, M.D.

# Hartford-Jeste Award for Future Leaders in Geriatric Psychiatry

Established in 2013 to honor noteworthy contributions enhancing the field of geriatric psychiatry through excellence in research, teaching, clinical practice and community service.

Pallavi Joshi, D.O., M.A., is a Geriatric Psychiatrist at Banner Alzheimer's Institute in Phoenix, AZ and Clinical Assistant Professor of Psychiatry at University of Arizona College of Medicine - Phoenix. She is the Program Director of the Geriatric Psychiatry Fellowship at University of Arizona. She completed her Geriatric Psychiatry fellowship at Yale School of Medicine and residency at Northwell Health - Staten Island University Hospital, as Chief Resident. She has held leadership and scientific committee positions in the American



Pallavi Joshi, D.O., M.A.

Association of Geriatric Psychiatry, American Psychiatric Association, and the American Academy of Addiction Psychiatry. She has presented on various topics at national conferences.

### Health Services Research Award - Senior Scholar

Established in 1998 to recognize sustained contributions to the field of psychiatric health services research by APA members.

A lexander Young, M.D., is a psychiatrist and researcher on clinical and health services. He is a Professor at UCLA and Associate Director of the Los Angeles VA MIRECC Health Services Unit. His focus is on understanding and improving the quality, effectiveness and value of health services, implementation science, and health informatics. His research has characterized health disparities nationally for depression and schizophrenia, improved healthcare and health equity, and demonstrated the effectiveness of a primary care



Alexander S. Young, M.D., MSHS

medical home for serious mental illness. He is currently studying mobile monitoring of mental healthcare and an outcomes-based measure of mental healthcare quality for national use.

### Isaac Ray Award

Established in 1951 to honor one of the original founders and fourth President of the Association, Isaac Ray, M.D., to honor a person who has made outstanding contributions to forensic psychiatry or to the psychiatric aspects of jurisprudence. This award is co-sponsored by the American Academy of Psychiatry and the Law.

ebra A. Pinals, M.D., is Senior Medical and Forensic Advisor, National Association of State Mental Health Program Directors, Adjunct Clinical Professor of Psychiatry at the University of Michigan (UofM) Medical School and Clinical Adjunct at UofM Law School. At the medical school, she directs the Program in Psychiatry, Law and Ethics and serves as Medical Director of Behavioral Health and Forensic Programs at the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services. She is the Medical Director of the



Debra A. Pinals, M.D.

American Academy of Psychiatry and the Law and formerly chaired APA's Council on Psychiatry and the Law and Council on Advocacy and Government Relations. Author of numerous academic and policy-level publications, she serves as an expert and consults widely regarding behavioral health, risk mitigation, crisis response, legal regulation of psychiatric practices, correctional and forensic services. Her most recent co-authored book, Addiction and the Law, was published by the APA Press in 2024.

# Jack Weinberg Memorial Award for Geriatric Psychiatry

Established in 1983 memory of Jack Weinberg, M.D., to honor a psychiatrist who has demonstrated special leadership or who has done outstanding work in clinical practice, training or research in geriatric psychiatry. Candidates for the award must be a psychiatrist nominated by an APA member. This award is selected and confirmed by the APA Council on Psychosomatic Medicine and Geriatric Psychiatry.

Josepha Cheong, M.D., is Professor of Psychiatry and Neurology at the University of Florida and Physician, VISN8 GRECC (Geriatric Research, Education, Clinical Center) at the Malcom Randall VAMC. For 30 years, she has distinguished herself in geriatric psychiatry and academic medicine. She has received numerous national education and leadership awards. With APA, she served over 30 appointments to APA Components, including multiple terms as Chair of Scientific Program Committee and Elections Committee. She served



Josepha A. Cheong, M.D.

in leadership and committees for AAGP, AADPRT, and AAP. Currently, she is the Chair and Director of the ABPN and the Treasurer of ACGME Board of Directors.

## Jeanne Spurlock, M.D. Minority Fellowship Achievement Award

Established in 1999 to recognize the outstanding achievements of former fellows and encourages continued involvement in the fellowship program. This award is funded by the APAF/SAMSHA Minority Fellowship Program.

nrico Castillo, M.D., is an Associate Professor and Associate Vice Chair for Justice, Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion at the UCLA Department of Psychiatry. He is an academic community psychiatrist, health services researcher, medical educator, and leader with a focus on health equity, serious mental illness, homelessness, incarceration, and community-government-academic partnerships. He currently leads a NIMH-funded project on the jail-to-homelessness pipeline experienced by individuals with serious mental



Enrico Castillo, M.D., M.S.

illness. He was the primary author of the APA position statement on "Mental Health Equity and the Social and Structural Determinants of Health" (2018) and has served on APA Councils since 2012.

### Kempf Fund Award for Research Development in Psychobiological Psychiatry

Established in 1988 in memory of Dorothy C. Kempf, to honor research excellence in the psychobiological, psychological, and/or sociological causes and treatment for schizophrenia. This award is a bequest from the Estate of Dorothy C. Kempf.

#### Mentor

annah Brown, M.D., is Director of the Boston Medical Center (BMC) Wellness and Recovery After Psychosis (WRAP) program, Vice Chair of Research, Division of Psychiatry at BMC, and Clinical Associate Professor of Psychiatry at Boston University Chobanian and Avedisian School of Medicine. Dr. Brown earned her MD from Harvard Medical School, completed residency training in psychiatry at Massachusetts General Hospital (MGH)/McLean Hospital and a fellowship in schizophrenia at MGH. Dr. Brown's work focuses on



Hannah Brown, M.D.

treatment of psychotic disorders by delivering equitable and accessible care. She has served as principal investigator for multiple clinical research studies and regularly publishes peer-reviewed articles.

#### Mentee

Professor of Psychiatry at Boston University (BU) Chobanian & Avedisian School of Medicine and the Assistant Director of Boston Medical Center (BMC)'s Wellness and Recovery After Psychosis program. She completed her residency in psychiatry and fellowship in Public Psychiatry at BU-BMC. She is a psychiatric epidemiologist whose research broadly focuses on modifiable factors that drive the 15-year mortality gap in schizophrenia. In 2023, she received the American Psychiatric



Brittany M. Gouse, M.D., M.P.H.

Association's Psychiatric Research Fellowship and BU's KL2 Career Development awards. With this support, she founded the Advancing Coordinated Care through Epidemiologic Studies (ACCESS) initiative.

### O'Leary Award for Innovation in Psychiatry

The O'Leary Award for Innovation in Psychiatry was established in 2022 in memory of APA Assembly Speaker, Paul O'Leary, M.D. The O'Leary Award provides seed money to launch innovative ideas in the field of mental and behavioral health to improve the efficiency of behavioral healthcare teams; improve and expand access to care, and leverage economies of scale; and address crisis de-escalation, stabilization, and wrap-around services to support recovery.

Saeed Ahmed, M.D., is a triple board-certified psychiatrist specializing in General Adult Psychiatry, Addiction Psychiatry, and Addiction Medicine. He serves as Chair of the Department of Psychiatry at Saint Francis Hospital and Medical Center, Trinity Health of New England, Hartford CT. Dr. Ahmed also serves as the Medical Director of Addiction Services and the Director of the Opioid Treatment Program at St. Francis Hospital Hartford, CT. He holds academic appointments as Assistant Professor at the University of Connecticut and



Saeed Ahmed, M.D., FAPA, FASAM

the Frank H. Netter MD School of Medicine at Quinnipiac University. Dr. Ahmed is a Fellow of the American Psychiatric Association (APA) and the American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM). In addition to clinical work, he is actively involved in research on substance use disorders, including micro-induction of Buprenorphine/Naloxone, Kratom addiction, the therapeutic role of psychedelics, off-label medication repurposing, and reducing barriers to treatment access for substance use disorders.

### Research Mentorship Award

Established in 1976, this award honors an academic psychiatrist who has significantly fostered the pursuit of student research within their university department through direct mentorship of individual students or by the promotion of novel research-oriented training activities. This award is co-sponsored by the American Association of Chairs of Departments of Psychiatry.

arolyn Rodriguez, M.D., is Associate Dean for Academic Affairs, Stanford University School of Medicine and a Consultation-Liaison Psychiatrist at the Palo Alto Veterans Affairs. As the Director of the Stanford OCD Research Lab and Professor in the Department of Psychiatry, Dr. Rodriguez leads studies investigating the brain basis of severe mental disorders, including OCD and related disorders. She also serves as Deputy Editor of the American Journal of Psychiatry. She has won several national awards, including the Presidential



Carolyn I. Rodriguez, M.D., Ph.D.

Early Career Award for Scientists and Engineers. She is co-author of "Hoarding Disorder: A Comprehensive Clinical Guide," published by APA Publishing. ■

### **APA Membership Committee**

### 2024-2025

Tanuja Gandhi, M.D., FAPA (Chairperson) Muhammad Zeshan, M.D., FAPA, Member Edward Lewis III, M.D., FAPA, Member Matthew Kruse, M.D., FAPA, Member Aronica Cotton, M.D., FAPA, Member Mark Haygood, D.O., DFAPA, Member Mary-Anne Hennen, M.D., Member Jean-Marie Alves-Bradford, M.D., FAPA, Member Jacqueline Posada, M.D., Member Vivek Prasad, M.D., FAPA, Member Michele Reid, M.D., DLFAPA, Member Mansoor Malik, M.D., DFAPA, Member Patricia Troy, M.Ed., IOM, CAE, Consultant (Next Wave Group; former DB Exec) Anna Weaver, M.A., CAE, Consultant (DB Exec)

